
MINUTES
 
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 

JUNE 16, 2009, 9:45 A.M.
 

The Board convened in the Commissioners' Hearing Room, 6th Floor, Public Service Center, 
1300 Franklin Street, Vancouver, Washington. Commissioners Mielke, Stuart, and Boldt, Chair, 
present. 

9:45 A.M. 

PROCLAMATION 

Commissioner Boldt read a proclamation for Scholastically Advancing to Physical Health
 
Mentoring Program.
 

Officer Ray Reynolds, Vancouver Police Department, accepted the proclamation.
 

10:00 A.M. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

The Commissioners led the Pledge ofAllegiance. 

BID AWARD 2531 

Reconvened a public hearing for Bid Award 2531 - Annual Syringe Exchange Program. 
Mike Westerman, General Services, read a memo recommending award of Bid 2531 to 
the lowest responsive bidder. 

There being no public comment, MOVED by Stuart to award Bid 2531 to Point Defiance 
of Tacoma, Washington in the total bid amount of$33,891.81, and grant authority to the 
County Administrator to sign all bid related contracts. Commissioners Boldt, Stuart, and 
Mielke voted aye. Motion carried. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Discussion: The board had questions pertaining to agenda item #1 - interlocal agreement 
with the City of Vancouver for habitat and wetland services. 

Travis Goddard, Department of Community Development, answered the board's 
questions related to the budget; biologist's average case time; and staff keeping up-to­
date on code changes. 

ACTION:	 There being no public comment, moved by Stuart to APPROVE consent agenda 
items 1 through 13. Commissioners Boldt, Stuart, and Mielke voted aye. Motion 
carried. 

Page 1 of 12 



MINUTES
 
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 

JUNE 16,2009,9:45 A.M.
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

None 

PUBLIC HEARING - OPEN SPACEffIMBERLAND 

Item Description: To consider the Clark County Planning Commission's 
recommendation for approval or denial of Timberland or Open Space Applications for 
Current Use Assessment pursuant to Chapter 84.34 of the RCW. 
Department: Community Development 
Staff Contact: Jim Vandling 

Staff Summary: Jim Vandling, Department of Community Development, presented a 
staff report outlining the Planning Commission's recommendations for approval or denial 
of the 47 Timberland and Open Space applications submitted in 2008 for review during 
2009. 

Comments from the public: None 

ACTION:	 There being no public comment, moved by Stuart to APPROVE Resolution 2009­
06-10 relating to the 2009 Current Use Real Property Assessment Applications for 
Open Space and Timberland Designation. Commissioners Boldt, Stuart, and Mielke 
voted aye. Motion carried. 

PUBLIC HEARING - SCHOOL IMPACT FEES 

Item Description: To consider a resolution temporarily amending Clark County Code 
40.61 0.040(b), modifying the imposition of school impact fees to authorize payment in 
two (2) installments, the first of which will be paid prior to building permit issuance and 
the second prior to transfer of title of the property. 
Department: Community Development 
Staff Contact: Marty Snell, Director 

Staff Summary: Marty Snell, Director, Department of Community Development, 
explained that a couple of months earlier the board adopted a resolution suspending 
increases to Transportation Impact Fees. At that time they were considering a change to 
the School Impact Fee recalculation, but did not adopt a resolution and instead asked staff 
to meet with the Building Industry Association and school districts in order to craft a 
compromise. They came up with a tentative agreement that school districts would still see 
the revenue from increases, but the payment of impact fees would not be made entirely up 
front at the time of building permit issuance. He said the resolution sets out two payments 
of the impact fees: the original amount calculated at the time of preliminary plat approval 
and the balance-which would be the increase-at the time of closing. Snell added that it 
was a temporary resolution that would carry through this year. 

Page 2 of 12 



MINUTES
 
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 

JUNE 16,2009,9:45 A.M.
 

Comments from the public: 
1) Todd Horenstein, Assistant Superintendent, Vancouver Public Schools, expressed 

support for the resolution. 
2) Mamie Allen, ESD 112, representing the nine Clark County school districts, stated 

that the districts were in support of the resolution as a temporary measure. 
3)	 Mike Bomar, Public Affairs Director, Building Industry Association, expressed 

support for the resolution, as well as appreciation to staff and the school districts for 
working with the BIA on this. 

Discussion: The board noted that a lot of work went into the resolution. Commissioner 
Boldt thanked the school districts and BIA. 

ACTION: Moved by Stuart to APPROVE Resolution 2009-06-07, temporarily amending CCC 
40.61 0.040(b) modifying the imposition of school impact fees to authorize payment 
in two (2) installments, the first of which will be paid prior to building permit 
issuance and the second prior to transfer of title of the property. Commissioners 
Boldt, Stuart, and Mielke voted aye. Motion carried. 

PUBLIC HEARING - COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FEES 

Item Description: To consider amendments to Community Development application 
and service fees that are found in Clark County Code chapters 6.110, 6.11 OA, 6.11 OA, 
6.120, and 6.140, which are Development Engineering, Development, Fire Marshal, and 
Building fees, respectively. 
Departments: Community Development; Public Works; Office of Budget 
Staff Contacts: Marty Snell, Director, Community Development 

Paul Scarpelli, Finance Manager, Community Development 
Jon Dunaway, Fire Marshal, Community Development 
Pete Capell, Director, Public Works 
Jim Dickman, Director, Office of Budget and Information Services 

Introduction: Bill Barron, County Administrator, provided a prelude to the following 
two hearings for Community Development Fees and Supplemental Appropriation. Mr. 
Barron explained that they had their May financial forecast, which depicted a $12 to $18 
million shortfall in revenues culminating in research by the Finance Team to carry out the 
board's policies with regard to the budget-a $21 million problem. The board requested 
that they decrease pressure on the General Fund; minimize reductions to FTEs; minimize 
service reductions, if possible; and optimize General Fund fund balances in the final 
analysis. He said they have done that with the proposed resolution before the board 
relative to fees, which if approved, would result in the second supplemental appropriation 
for fiscal year 2009-2010. Barron introduced Jim Dickman, Director, Office of Budget 
and Information Services, to talk about the overall integration of the Community 
Development Fee proposal with the Supplemental Appropriation. 

Page 3 of 12 



MINUTES
 
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 

JUNE 16,2009,9:45 A.M.
 

Jim Dickman, Director, Office of Budget and Information Services, presented a table 
outlining the situation with the General Fund and Community Development. He 
explained the General Fund charges, which total $20.7 million, and the General Fund 
support, which totals $15.2 million. He said the reduction to DCD support was asking the 
board what it would take to shore up that department by either budget reductions or 
revenue enhancements through fees so there is no additional hit to the General Fund, 
which currently subsidizes the department by $2.8 million for the biennium. He added 
that if nothing was approved, that would increase to $7.8 million. Mr. Dickman then 
explained the second column, which reflects the assumption that the department would 
reduce their budget by $2 million and fee increases would go up by $2.2 million. He said 
the funding deficit would come to $4.5 million or about 3% and all departments were 
asked to submit an across-the-board reduction that would cover the remaining funding 
deficit. The Budget Office has received that information, which has been summarized for 
the board. He explained column 3, which assumes no fee increase and totals $7.2 million 
for a funding deficit; and column 4, which assumes full cost recovery and totals $3.8 
million. 

Marty Snell, Director, Department of Community Development, presented. He said the 
proposal before the board would reduce their costs by about $2 million, which is 
equivalent of 18.3 FTEs, the breakdown of which is 10 full staff layoffs; 11 with reduced 
hours. Mr. Snell provided a background of what has been done to date beginning in 
January 2008 and stated that the department has gone from a staff of 122.5 to 52-53, 
which is a reduction of greater than 50%. Snell then went over a table outlining 
Development Fees (copy of table in hearing file). 

Stuart commented that when they look at the development fees he wanted to make sure 
they remember that those fees do not touch the General Fund activities within 
Community Development; that those activities have gotten wrapped into the maelstrom 
of what's going on within the department, but they are not eligible to be using fees-they 
are General Fund activities that are not affected by the decreased workload within the 
building industry such as fee-related activities. 

Commissioner Mielke said he hoped that as they go forward and continue to review the 
process they look at what they require for some of the fees. 

Stuart agreed and said he thought it was necessary that they have the discussion on Title 
40 to question whether or not they should be doing certain things and, if so, why. 

Jim Muir, Chief Building Officer, Department of Community Development-Building 
Safety, responded to Commissioner Mielke's question about the water heater fee. 

Snell pointed out that a number of the fees are actually decreasing. 

Page 4 of 12 



MINUTES
 
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 

JUNE 16,2009,9:45 A.M.
 

Jon Dunaway, Fire Marshal, Department of Community Development-Fire Marshal's 
Office, presented the proposed Fire Marshal fee table for 2009 and the fee increase 
scenarios for the Existing Occupancy Inspection program (copies of table in hearing file). 

Stuart asked when the Fire Marshal fees had last been changed. 

Dunaway said the current table was put together in 2006, but prior to that they were 
charging based on the number of operational permits issued to a certain business, which 
was about the same amount of revenue coming in as what they are currently charging­
for about 2 or 3 years prior to that I thought the revenue coming in was about the same. 

Stuart said based on the proposed changes, he wanted to know if they had a sense of how 
much additional revenue would be raised from what the existing is. 

Dunaway said it would remain essentially the same. 

Mielke stated that he wanted to have a work session regarding the Fire Marshal fees 
because they haven't had discussion about it and the increases are substantial. 

Stuart said it's a life safety issue and he supported dealing with it quickly. 

Paul Scarpelli, Finance Manager, Department of Community Development, said they 
were given the scenario of maintaining the General Fund subsidy to the three programs 
within Community Development: Animal, Fire, and Code. He further explained. Mr. 
Scarpelli said the approximate two-year $1.5 million that was coming from Fund 1011 to 
the General Fund programs was now off the table. He said that money was already set and 
was about $300 million in General Fund program. He stated that raising the fees would 
only stop the layoff of four people within the Fire Marshal's Office. 

Stuart said by law it's a General Fund activity and associated with life safety, which was 
why he was trying to pull it back into the General Fund conversation. He said he didn't 
want to see them slash General Fund activities in one area and treat them differently than 
every other General Fund activity they are doing in other areas of their government. 

Mielke said they haven't discussed this in depth, but it was part of budget balancing and 
part of the layoff was part of that. He said his problem was over state mandate-they have 
mandated themselves into a financial bind, but what they have mandated and the 
requirements they have put forward at the county level, which is why he wanted to have a 
work session on this issue and not delay the rest of it moving forward. 

[Brief adjournment at 11 :30 a.m. to convene as the Vancouver Library Capital Facility 
Area Board to consider a bond resolution; see separate minutes.] 

Page 5 of 12 



MINUTES
 
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 

JUNE 16,2009,9:45 A.M.
 

Commissioner Boldt reconvened the hearing for Community Development Fees and 
introduced Pete Capell to present Development Engineering Fees. 

Pete Capell, Director, Department of Public Works, went over the following tables 
regarding fees for the Development Engineering Program: expenses and revenues; 
summary of proposed fee increases; proposed fee reductions/proposed fee increases 
greater than 50o/o--Engineering Reviews & Inspection; and table 6.11 OA020 (copies in 
hearing file). He noted that the proposed ordinance didn't properly include the inspection 
fees and another hearing for that would need to scheduled and appropriately noticed. 

Comments from the public: 
1)	 Scott Koehler, East County Fire and Rescue, representing the Clark County Fire 

Chiefs' Association, expressed concerns regarding potential impacts to the Fire 
Marshal's Office, especially in tenns of a reduction in staffing. Mr. Koehler asked the 
board for their vigilance in maintaining the current level of public safety they have 

. with the Fire Marshal. 
2)	 Gary Larson, Chair of the Board, East County Fire and Rescue, and President of the 

Clark County Fire Commissioners' Association, expressed concerns about the 
proposed Fire Marshal fees. Mr. Larson also expressed support for the Fire Marshal 
and their efforts to protect citizens, as well as volunteers and paid firefighters. He 
asked the board to give serious consideration to the Fire Marshal's Office. 

3)	 Eric Golemo, on behalf of the Development Engineering Advisory Board (DEAB), 
asked that the county not implement a policy for 100% fee recovery for all activities. 
Instead, the DEAB was recommending an individualized fee recovery policy for tasks 
or review functions, and an overall average of between 50 -75% fee recovery. 

4)	 Dr. Elizabeth Grauer, Veterinarian, Humane Society for Southwest Washington; 
Clark County Animal Control Advisory Board; and DOGPAW Safety Task Force, 
expressed support for Animal Control. She noted that less than 20% of the dogs in 
Clark County are licensed and suggested a way to generate revenue would be for 
Animal Control Officers to canvass area dog parks where they could issue licensing 
tickets. She asked that the planned layoffs be postponed to allow Animal Control time 
to focus on generating extra licensing revenue. 

5)	 Kenneth Hill commented on the safety and welfare of citizens and expressed support 
for the Fire Marshal's Office. 

6)	 Mike Bomar, Building Industry Association, said they supported the Development 
Engineering Advisory Board's concept of 50 -75% cost recovery. Mr. Bomar said 
they would like to see more flexibility from the department in tenns of the housing 
market, as well as look at ways to improve the Title 40 process. He asked the board 
about a timetable for looking at the fees again. 
Commissioner Stuart said his understanding was that by January 1, 2010 they would 
have a new system in place for fee assessment that would be an hourly-based system. 

7)	 Lori Harris, Clark County Executive Horse Council Foster Program, expressed 
support for Animal Control and asked the board to reconsider the proposed layoffs for 

Page 6 of 12 



MINUTES
 
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 

JUNE 16,2009,9:45 A.M.
 

Animal Control. Ms. Harris described the many services provided by the department 
and stated that a reduction in staffing would greatly impact those services. 

8)	 Judy Russell expressed support for Animal Control. She noted that she served on the 
original committee for DOGPAW and felt that many dog owners would be glad to 
contribute money in support of Animal Control staff. 

9)	 Joel Stirling, Stirling Design, Inc., had concerns regarding fee increases. Mr. Stirling 
suggested that the pennit counter be open in the afternoon rather than the morning. 

10) Butch Reynolds, President, Clark County Executive Horse Council, highlighted 
results of a recent survey they conducted regarding the impacts of a reduction in 
Animal Control staffing. 

11) Chuck Tourtillott, Executive Director, Humane Society for Southwest Washington, 
expressed support for Animal Control. Mr. Tourtillott said it would be detrimental to 
cut staff at this time and asked the board to reconsider. 

12) Donna Goddard, Clark County Code Enforcement, and President of Local 307, 
commented on the reduction of staff in the Department of Community Development. 
Ms. Goddard asked the board to do three things: 1.) raise fees to fee-funded divisions; 
2.) refund the General Fund divisions; and 3.) fix the General Fund problem in 
Community Development. 

13) Desiree de Monye, Department of Community Development, commented about the 
impacts of staff reductions in the department and stated that her hours had reduced by 
25%, which affects the stability of her family. She said developers should be more 
concerned with reduced service levels rather than raising fees. Ms. de Monye asked 
the board to support the fee increases and also come up with a comprehensive 
approach to budgeting Community Development. 

14) Chris Sundstrom, developer, expressed concerns regarding fee increases. Mr. 
Sundstrom stated that there was no control to ensure they look at more efficient ways 
to provide services and if they buy into the current numbers, there was no incentive to 
see costs come down. 

15) Ott Gaither stated that private sector jobs supported public sector jobs. He asked that 
the board consider what they should do to reduce the number of people going across 
the bridge everyday and generate more jobs in the county. 

16) Bruce Neil, Neil Real Estate Services, had concerns that if they increase fees they 
would see more potential developments drop off, which would have a domino effect 
on services rendered for that. He said they may increase the fee schedule, but may not 
increase the revenue they're looking for. 

Discussion: Commissioner Boldt said he would suggest $3 million for Community 
Development; scenario 3 for the Fire Marshal; and 75% for Engineering fees. 
Commissioner Stuart suggested the board take a quick break. 

[IO-MINUTE BREAK] 

The board had discussion on the next steps in updating the fee process. 

Page 7 of 12 



MINUTES
 
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 

JUNE 16,2009,9:45 A.M.
 

County Administrator Barron clarified that they have begun the hourly fee work to get to 
a systematic approach and they've also begun work on Title 40 changes, which would 
hopefully eliminate some of the fees altogether. The deadline to accomplish those two 
things was January 1, 2010. 

ACTION:	 Commissioner Boldt closed public comment and adjourned the public hearing on 
Community Development Fees to reconvene at the conclusion of the Supplemental 
Appropriation hearing. 

PUBLIC HEARING - SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATION 

Item Description: To consider 2009 Summer Supplemental Appropriation for a total 
decrease in expenditures of$6,532,251. Revenue decreases total $40,426,776 for a net 
decrease in fund balance of $33,894,525. 
Department: Office of Budget and Infonnation Services 
Staff Contact: Jim Dickman, Director 

Staff Summary: Jim Dickman, Director, Office of Budget and Infonnation Services, 
presented. He explained the revenue decrease, which seems large, and said much of that 
deals with Community Development and it's not real cash, but a forecast number that 
they are reducing. Dickman summarized the request before the board. 

Discussion:
 
There was extensive discussion regarding the three scenarios.
 

Commissioner Boldt asked for clarification regarding the Fire Marshal's cut of $292,000. 

Dickman clarified that the infonnation may be dated from what the department is finally 
proposing for Animal Control, Fire Marshal and Code and if there was any modification, 
they could quickly adjust those numbers to incorporate the board's changes. 

Scarpelli stated that there was $622,000 in the budget today that Fund 1011 was 
scheduled to give the Fire Marshal; however, they were no longer allowed to do so. He 
calculated that % of that was $465,000. 

Boldt wanted to know what total would be if they wanted to keep the Fire Marshal whole 
minus 3%. 

Stuart said they would have to find $269,000 somewhere-increased revenues or 
decreased expenses. 

Boldt asked if scenario 2 would be a zero sum gain. 

Page 8 of 12 



MINUTES
 
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 

JUNE 16, 2009, 9:45 A.M.
 

Dickman said under scenario 2 they would still be looking at a shortfall of$163,OOO and 
if they didn't make it up in fees, they would be looking at that kind of subsidy from the 
General Fund in order to keep it whole. So based on that scenario they were looking at a 
reduction of 1 FTE. 

Stuart noted that there was one employee eligible for early retirement and if there was an 
FTE loss, it would still be consistent with their provisions and guidance. 

Commissioner Mielke asked if they could go forward with everything except Fire 
Marshal, Code, and Animal Control, which they could address separately. He said he 
would like to have a work session. 

Commissioner Boldt wanted to know if there was a way to hold the Fire Marshal's office 
intact until the end of the year, doing some revisions to code. 

Commissioner Stuart said in order to not exacerbate the problem in the General Fund but 
still stay as whole as possible in this critical area, he would suggest moving forward with 
scenario 2 to do that as a revenue enhancement for that area of life and safety and then 
make that part of the Title 40 look so they are actually looking at the code to ensure they 
are being as efficient as possible. 

Barron noted that the Fire Marshal has done is the same exact thing that the Community 
Development Director did, which is the interim rates to show various scenarios for cost 
recovery and to move towards more efficient code and hourly rates. 

Commissioner Mielke said he was uncomfortable with where they were starting, which is 
at a 320% increase that equals budget. 

There was further discussion about scenario 2 and Commissioner Mielke said he thought 
they could consider scenario 2 and see how things play out with a possible early 
retirement. Commissioners Stuart and Boldt concurred. 

Commissioner Stuart stated that although they hadn't yet developed a full structure for a 
Department of Environmental Services, they have found some areas of overlap and 
potential cost savings that produce General Fund savings. He explained that they have 
found about $390,914 in the ESA Program that can be paid for from other areas without 
diminishing the service. Within that $390,914, he said he hoped to take $107,000 to 
preserve a Biologist position, which was a proposed cut from Community Development, 
and move that position to the Department of Environmental Services. He said he would 
like to put the remaining amount of $287,457 into the General Fund activities of Animal 
Control and Code. Commissioners Boldt and Mielke agreed. 

Page 9 of 12 



MINUTES
 
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 

JUNE 16, 2009, 9:45 A.M.
 

Commissioner Boldt opened public comment. 

Comments from the public: 

1)	 Don Bohlin asked the board to do an audit to find out how much of the county's 
budget is being paid to illegals. 

ACTION:	 Commissioner Boldt closed public comment and adjourned the hearing regarding the 
Supplemental Appropriation. He reconvened the hearing for Community 
Development Fees. 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FEES (Reconvened) 

Commissioner Boldt stated that they had agreement on the Fire Marshal, scenario 2; the 
Engineering Review costs for 75% recovery; and the Development Fees collecting $3 
million through fees. He noted that they would re-advertise for the hearing on 
Development Engineering Fees. 

Mr. Snell stated that the ordinance to adopt fees would attach an exhibit and they would 
have to strip the columns out and accept those that are to $3 million. 

Barron said they could approve the ordinance by approving the appropriate column. 

Audience member Bruce Neil commented on the effective date, which he had heard was 
going to be July 1. 

Commissioner Stuart said they could have July 1, 2009 be the effective date. 

ACTION:	 Commissioner Stuart moved to AMEND Ordinance 2009-06-08, beginning on line 
1: "an ordinance adopting revised fees for Development Services ... ," and add the 
words "Development Engineering;" add "Whereas for the purposes of this ordinance, 
fees for Public Works-Development Engineering are included; and at the second line 
from the bottom at CCC 6.11.0A.020, strike the words "final construction" and 
include the words "Development Engineering;" and change the effective date to July 
1,2009. Commissioners Boldt, Stuart, and Mielke voted aye. Motion carried. 

ACTION:	 Commissioner Stuart moved to APPROVE Ordinance 2009-06-08, as amended and 
using Scenario II for the Fire Marshal, $3 million for Development and Building 
fees, and 75% cost recovery for Development Engineering. Commissioners Boldt, 
Stuart, and Mielke voted aye. Motion carried. 

[BREAK] 

Page 10 of 12 



MINUTES
 
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 

JUNE 16,2009,9:45 A.M.
 

SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATION- Reconvened 

Mr. Dickman presented an updated staff report incorporating the following: Scenario 2 
for the Fire Marshal; $3 million increase in Building and Development fees beginning 
July 1, 2009; and reducing the ESA budget by $390,000, restoring a Biologist within 
Fund lOll-Community Development, and reducing the reductions in the original staff 
report for Animal Control and Code Enforcement. He said the board would be adopting a 
total expenditure decrease across all funds of$6,147,568, a revenue decrease of 
$37,792,093, for a net change in fund balance of$31,644,525. 

ACTION:	 Commissioner Stuart moved to APPROVE Resolution 2009-06-09, including the 
attached staff report as amended and read by Jim Dickman, Budget Director. 
Commissioners Boldt, Stuart, and Mielke voted aye. Motion carried. 

Comments:
 
The board collectively thanked staff for their hard work on this.
 

ACTION:	 Commissioner Stuart proposed a motion to direct staff to notice and bring forward to 
the Board of Commissioners for hearing an Ordinance to increase Public Works­
Development Engineering Inspection and Utility Permit Fees; hearing to take place 
on July 14,2009. Commissioners Boldt, Stuart, and Mielke voted aye. Motion 
carried. 

COMMISSIONER COMMUNICATIONS 

None 

Hearing adjourned 

Page 11 of 12 



MINUTES
 
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 

JUNE 16,2009,9:45 A.M.
 
\ ... i , 

SSIONERS 

-~ .. 

Steve Stuart, Commissioner 

Tom Mielke, Commissioner 

ATTEST: 

~L~~ 
lerk of the Board 

rt 

Please Note: The Board of Commissioners' minutes are action minutes. Digital recordings can 
be provided upon request. In addition, the Commissioners' hearings are broadcast live on 
CVTV, cable channels 21 and 23, and are also videotaped and repeated several times 
(www.cvtv.org) 

Page 12 of 12 


